
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

3945	Rio	Road,	Carmel,	CA	 93923		

 
May 30, 2019 

Thursday 
9:00AM 

 

 
 
 
 

 

1



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held April 25, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

1 

 

  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT   

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
April  25, 2019 

 
 

	
CALL	TO	ORDER	‐	ROLL	CALL	‐ The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.				
	
Present:		 President: Ken White, Directors: Greg D’Ambrosio, Michael Rachel,  
	 Robert Siegfried and Charlotte Townsend 
 
Absent:		 None   
 
Others:											Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 

   Rachel Lather, Principal Engineer, CAWD  
   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
 Ed Waggoner, Operations Superintendent, CAWD 
 Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
 Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD 
 Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
   Barry Blevins, Collection Worker III, CAWD 
   Mike Skinkle, Maintenance Mechanic II, CAWD 
   Trevor Holland, Lab Analyst/Environmental Inspector, CAWD 
 Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD District Legal Counsel 
    Leo Laska, Director, Pebble Beach Community Service District (PBCSD) 
    Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 
    Jane Ipsen, CEO, Carmel Valley Manor 
    Maureen Wruck, Maureen Wruck Planning Consultants, LLC 
   
   

APPEARANCES,	ORDERS	OF	BUSINESS	&	ANNOUNCEMENTS		
1.		 Appearances/Public	Comments:		
There were no Public Comments at the start of the meeting. 

	
2.		 Agenda	Changes:	
 President White requested that item #20 be moved up on the agenda just after the employee 
acknowledgments . President White also asked the Board to add an item to the agenda, regarding 
a letter concerning Ambulance service.   The Board gave unanimous consensus to add this item.  

 
There were no other agenda changes. 

	

2



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held April 25, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

2 

 

	

3.		Employee Acknowledgements and Awards:        

 California Water Environment Association (CWEA)-  State Level  
o Barry Blevins- 1st Place as The Collections Worker of the Year  
o Mike Skinkle- 2nd Place Maintenance Technician of the Year 
o Trevor Holland- 2nd Place Lab Person of the Year 
o Ray DeOcampo – 2nd Place Source Control Person of the Year  
o Ed Waggoner- 25 years of CWA Service 

 
Ms. Buikema said that CAWD did extremely well in placing at the State level competition this year. 
Barry Blevins achieved the number one spot at the State level as the Collection Worker of the year.   
 
Ms. Buikema also recognized the achievements of Mr. Skinkle earning second place at the State 
level for Maintenance and Mr. Holland earning second place at the State level for Lab Person of the 
year.  Mr. Waggoner stated Mr. DeOcampo achieved Second Place for Source Control at the State 
level. Ms. Buikema stated that CAWD is committed and focused on training employees to be the 
best.  Finally, Ms. Buikema recognized Mr. Waggoner for more than twenty-five years of service for 
CWEA . 
 
President White added that the Board is extremely proud of all their accomplishments.  
 
RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES	(Item	20	on	the	agenda	was	moved	up	to	the	front	of	the	meeting	to	
accommodate	guest	in	the	audience	who	attended	to	make	public	comment.)	
   
20.	Resolution	No.	2019‐15; A Resolution Authorizing The General Manager to Sign            
        A Contract With Denise Duffy & Associates To Provide Environmental Review, Annexation  
        Mapping, And Geographic Descriptions For LAFCO Annexation Process of Portions Of 

          Carmel Valley and Carmel Highlands In An Amount Not To Exceed $49,830.–  
       Engine Systems Integration-Report	by Principal		Engineer,	Rachel	Lather	
 
			Ms.	Lather	presented	the	staff	report	regarding	annexation.		

Ms. Lather said that there has been increasing interest in annexing to the District, specifically 
Carmel Valley Manor, Yankee Point, and Corona Road. Instead of annexing individually the District 
spoke with Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) and the preference is to do one large 
annexation.  LAFCO suggested working with Denise Duffy Associates because this organization has 
already done the 2016 annexation and would be at a reduced cost because the research has already 
been completed regarding these areas.  
 
Ms. Buikema stated there will be a separate connection fee schedule for those annexed parcels and 
that is how the costs will be reimbursed. 
 

3



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held April 25, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

3 

 

Director Rachel asked, “what is the competitive environment regarding the Denise Duffy 
Associates proposal”?  Ms. Lather responded that the proposal is  $50K, which is lower than before 
because a significant amount of the research had already been done in the previous annexation for 
CAWD.  
 
 

President White opened the meeting for   public comment. 
 
Ms. Ipsen, Chief Executive Officer of Carmel Valley Manor stated that their organization 
approached CAWD approximately a  year ago. Carmel Valley Manor  is on a septic system and the 
Manor is fifty-six years old .  It is time for Carmel Valley Manor to come off a septic system and 
move into CAWD’s sewer system and they are very supportive of making this change. The County 
is also very supportive of Carmel Valley Manor connecting to the CAWD sewer system.  
 
Maureen Wruck, Maureen	Wruck	 Planning	 Consultants,	 thanked the Board for bringing this item 
forward.   

President White closed the time for public comment.  
 

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	Townsend,	the	

Board	unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐15.	
 

 
 

President White requested that a Staff report be made for the new Ordinances:	
	

	
Receive Principal Engineer Staff Report for Ordinances No. 2019-01,2019-02,2019-03:          
Report	by Principal		Engineer,	Rachel	Lather	
	
Ms. Lather stated that the staff report would summarize all three Ordinances for the Board’s 
review and adoption.  These Ordinances are needed for State compliance requirements and need 
to be done prior to the Sewer System Management Plan update to show that CAWD has progressed 
on the Ordinances. The 2019-01 Uniform Plumbing Ordinances establishes the rules for the use of 
CAWD’s sewer system. Ordinance 2019-02 Standard Plans and Specifications provides guidance 
on how to implement the rules. 2019-03 Administrative Penalties Ordinance establishes the 
enforcement mechanism if the rules are not followed. Ms. Lather stated that the lateral 
replacement requirement will  occur when a  business or residence is sold and will be included 
with upgrades/remodel of $50K or greater.   
 
Mr. Lauer then said that  to extend public outreach the following organizations have been 
contacted; The Realtors Association, City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, The City Council and staff, The 
County, Plumbers, and Home Inspectors.  The enforcement will go into effect October 2019.  CAWD 
is taking a proactive approach and asking for an inspection to move towards a maintenance free 
condition of the lateral line. Half of the spills that occurred last year at CAWD occurred due to  roots 

4



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held April 25, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

4 

 

that were cut out into the District’s main line.  
 
Ms. Buikema extended a “thank you” to the ad hoc committee contribution regarding this issue.  
 
Director D’Ambrosio asked how the $50K remodel was chosen?  Mr. Lauer stated it was a 
benchmark target and allows CAWD to monitor  the lateral conditions.  
 
Director Rachel indicated that there might be some challenge involved regarding a non-related 
water remodel?  Mr. Lauer stated that additional refinement may be needed for remodels . The 
ancillary benefit is that once the lateral has been brought up to code another inspection will not be 
needed for ten years. 
 
Director Siegfried, asked how will CAWD be kept abreast of sales?     Mr. Lauer stated the realtors 
and home inspectors need to be the driving force to ensure lateral compliance when selling or 
inspecting a home.  
 
Director D’Ambrosio commented that the reason for a lateral inspection is an environmental 
approach Peninsula-wide. 
 
Mr. Wellington stated the Staff report has been heard and that the Public Hearing should be 
opened.  President White opened the Public Hearing at 9:34 am and closed it soon thereafter. 
 
 

PUBLIC	HEARING 

Public Hearing was opened At 9:34 am or Soon Thereafter As The Matters May Be Taken Up.  
Regarding three new Ordinances as they are interrelated. 	

 

ORDINANCES	
	Ordinance	No.	2019‐01; An Ordinance (1) Repealing Ordinance No.84 and No.91-06   
   Concerning Uniform Plumbing Ordinance of the Carmel Sanitary District, And (2) Adopting  
   New and Revised Uniform Plumbing Ordinance of the Carmel Area Waste Water District- 
   Report by Principal	Engineer,	Rachel	Lather	 	 	 	 	 	 	 										
 

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	Director	Rachel	,	the	Board						

unanimously	approved	Ordinance	No.	2019‐01.	
 
 
		Ordinance	No.	2019‐02; An Ordinance Adopting New Standard Plans and Specifications- 

       Report by Principal	Engineer,	Rachel	Lather	 	
 

      Director Rachel asked to go to page three of the staff report in the bottom paragraph the           
terminology used was” in order to reduce inflow…”. Ms. Lather stated it should read infiltration.  

5



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held April 25, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

5 

 

 
Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Townsend	and	seconded	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	,	the	Board	
unanimously	approved	Ordinance	No.	2019‐02.	

	
	
				Ordinance	No.	2019‐03; An	Ordinance	Adopting	New	Standard	Plans	and	Specifications‐	
			  of the Carmel Area Waste Water District– Report by Principal	Engineer,	Rachel	Lather	
		

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	Director	Rachel,	the	Board	

unanimously	approved	Ordinance	No.	2019‐03.	
	
	
Mr. Wellington stated that there is a typo in all three Ordinances. It is in the last  paragraph which  
refers to the effective date and it references its own section but should be referencing 
the prior section. Ms. Lather stated this will be corrected.  
 

The Public Hearing closed at 9:38 am 
 
	

Reconvened	Regular	Board	Meeting	4‐25‐19	immediately	after	the	closing	of	The	Public	Hearing	
	

CONSENT	CALENDAR:	APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES,	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	AND	
MONTHLY	REPORTS		

Board	Action	
Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	D’Ambrosio	and	seconded	by	Director	Townsend	,	the	Board	
unanimously	approved	the	Regular	Meeting	Minutes	of	March	28th,	2019,	and	enacted	the	following	
Consent	Calendar	items:	
	
5.  Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes on March 28,2019     
        

6.  Receive and Accept Bank Statement Review by Hayashi Wayland –                      
        March 2019 
	
7.  Receive and Accept Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements –                                              

     March 2019      
8.  Approve Register of Disbursements - Carmel Area Wastewater District –                      
       March 2019  

9.  Approve Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project  –                               
       March  2019  

6



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held April 25, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

6 

 

10.  Receive and Accept Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules –        
          March 2019  

11.  Receive and Accept Collection System Superintendent’s -                                                                   
        January, February, & March 2019                
 
12.  Receive and Accept Safety And Regulatory Compliance Report-                                                     

        March 2019    
	
13.  Receive and Accept Treatment Facility Operations Report –       
												January ,February, & March 2019          

14.  Receive and Accept Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report –     
            March  2019         
  
15. Receive and Accept Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan–      
         March 2019  
 
16. Receive and Accept Plant Operations Report – March 2019       
 

17. Receive and Accept Maintenance Projects Report – March 2019      
         	
18. Receive Principal Engineer Monthly Report General Engineering – March 2019    

 
        Ms. Lather stated the rate model will follow the engineering study. The order of items is 

because the two consulting teams must ensure that all information is provided in a  manner 
that they need to determine the model.  Ms. Lather stated that a review will occur with Staff 
and Board involved.  

 
 
ACTION	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD		
Action	Items	consist	of	business	which	requires	a	vote	by	the	Board.	These	items	are	acted	upon	in	the	
following	sequence:	(1)	Staff	Report	(2)	Board	Questions	to	Staff	(3)	Public	Comments,	and	(4)	Board	
Discussion	and	Action.		
	
 
RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES	
   
19.	Resolution	No.	2019‐14; A Resolution Authorizing The General Manager to         
Execute A Professional Services Agreement in An amount Not to Exceed $30,000 For an  
Evaluation of Gas Conditioning and Natural Gas Blending For Microturbines –Engine System 
Integration – Report	by Plant	Engineer,	Patrick	Treanor 

7



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held April 25, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

7 

 

	
 Mr. Treanor stated that this project is budgeted for next fiscal year but the opportunity to start 
early presented itself. This is a study to gather information and criteria on potential 
requirements.  The micro turbine system needs to be high functioning and fully utilized.  There 
is a potential to increase gas production in the future with other waste streams and there are 
ancillary benefits due to increased sophistication of the technology over the past ten years and 
the use of pre-engineered skids to increase efficiency.  
 

Board	Action	

Following	a	motion	made	by	Director	Siegfried	and	seconded	by	Director	Rachel,	the	Board	
unanimously	adopted	Resolution	No.	2019‐14.	

 

OTHER	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD	
			21.	Acronym Policy-	Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager	  

        Ms. Buikema supplied a list of rules and guidelines for employees to use with respect to  
acronyms in District writing. 

 
	 	 The Board made no modification and took no action. 

  		
Added	agenda	item:	Ambulance	Service:	

Director Siegfried and Ms. Buikema attended a meeting at the firehouse at Rio 
Road last Thursday.  The meeting covered the County Ambulance RFP and 
potential longer response times and “voluntary” mutual aid contracts.  
President White mentioned that historically back in the mid 90’s regarding a  
similar issue in Carmel City and Carmel Mid Valley when they had their own 
consortium of ambulance services and an ambulance company came forward 
and stated they wanted to take the full county.   The public is in favor of the 
current agreement to keep the public safe with local short response time.   
 

        President White stated there needs to be a letter with broad distribution about 
the Boards position prior to May 10th.  Ms. Buikema will write a letter to the 
Chiefs on behalf of the Board.  

					

							INFORMATION/DISCUSSION	ITEMS	
22.	PBCSD	02‐22‐19	Regular	Board	Meeting	‐	Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager								

 
The report was informational only – no action required.	

	23.	Pension Committee Meeting 04-16-19- Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager	 							 

The report was informational only – no action required.	

8



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held April 25, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

8 

 

	

24.	Sea Level Rise Committee Meeting Minutes 04-09-19-Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,																											
General	Manager	 	

Ms. Buikema stated the first meeting occurred on April 9th and it went very well. The         
consensus of this first meeting was the broad goal was to obtain a permit with no time limit, 
and obtain required reports and establish a series of triggers for Sea Level Rise (SLR), as well 
as obtain legal assistance, which is being done by Mr. Wellington.  In addition, there was a 
discussion regarding cost sharing.  

Ms. Buikema stated that the Coastal Commission has invited CAWD to “redline” their 
document. She is working toward setting up a second (SLR) meeting to list what CAWD and 
other partners want the agreement to say.  

Director Siegfried has some concerns that the (SLR) was an ad hoc committee.  Mr. 
Wellington stated that an ad hoc committee is a particular instance that will be resolved 
within a standard time frame.  Mr. Wellington stated that the (SLR) ad hoc committee cannot 
be a standing committee of CAWD because it is comprised of other members that are not 
CAWD.  Mr. Wellington continued that the ad hoc committee was setup for the purpose of a 
proposal for an interim coastal permit and once this is resolved a standing committee will 
be established for (SLR). 

25.	Lagoon Crossing Repairs –Report	By	Patrick	Treanor,	Plant	Engineer		

Mr. Treanor stated the Lagoon Crossing Repair was a great success.  The execution of this 
project adhered to the environmental sensitivity of the project.         

Mr. Niccum stated there is an outstanding issue regarding the cost share with PBCSD 
regarding this project.  Currently, CAWD is waiting for a response from PBSCD. 

			26.	General Manager-2nd Quarter Update –Report	By	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager	 				

Director Siegfried requested additional input from Ms. Buikema on page 141, “The County  
continues to hold that they are responsible to assist CAWD in finding grant funding”. Ms.  
Buikema stated the County is  silent to the fact if CAWD does not get a grant and this topic 
flows into the General Managers report.  

				27.	Update on Mr. Larsen’s Connection In Carmel Highlands  

No comments were made 
 
 

9



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held April 25, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

9 

 

STAFF	&	BOARD	MEMBER	REPORTS	
Staff	Reports	include	items	for	which	verbal	reports/presentation	will	be	provided.	If	a	
specific	presentation	is	planned,	it	will	be	listed	and	summary	information	may	be	included	
with	the	Agenda.	Brief	oral	reports	may	be	provided	for	items	arising	after	the	Agenda	
preparation.	The	Board	may	wish	to	ask	questions	or	discuss	a	staff	report,	but	no	action	is	
appropriate	other	than	referral	to	staff,	or	request	that	a	matter	be	set	as	a	future	Agenda	
Item.	

	
28.	General Manager’s Report - Oral	Report	by	Barbara	Buikema,	General	Manager	 	 										 	

Ms. Buikema stated that CAWD did submit a written response to the Draft Environmental 
Impact Report (DEIR) for the Carmel River Floodplain Restoration  & Environmental 
Enhancements (CRFREE).  The County acknowledged that mitigation will be required 
because of potential damage to CAWD’s pipeline because of CRFREE.  CAWD does not have 
an agreement with the County and that is why a response to the draft DEIR was submitted 
to protect CAWD’s rights. 		

29.	Announcements On Subjects Of Interest To The Board Made By Members Of The Board or 
Staff - Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning their 
activities and/or meetings or conferences attended. 

President White asked Mr. Waggoner what was the impact of  the microturbine system 
being “offline” for three months? Mr. Waggoner stated biosolids have not been affected.  

OTHER	ITEMS	BEFORE	THE	BOARD	
25.	Announcements On Subjects Of Interest To The Board Made By Members Of The Board  
or Staff ‐ Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning  their 
activities and/or meetings or conferences attended. 

	
PBCSD	Board	Public	Meeting	Notice	&	Agenda–The next PBCSD meetings are scheduled for: 
Friday, April 26, 2019 at 9:30a.m.  President	White	is	scheduled	to	attend.		 
Friday, May 19, 2019 at 9:30a.m.  Director	D’Ambrosio	is	scheduled	to	attend.		 

Correction	to	meeting	date	Friday,	May	31,	at	9:30	am.	

Reclamation	Management	Committee	Meeting –  The next RMC meeting is scheduled for:  
Wednesday, May 8, 2019 at 9:30 a.m.  Director	Townsend	and	Director	White	are	scheduled	to	attend.			
	

Special	Districts	Association	of	Monterey	County–The next SDA meeting is scheduled for: 
Tuesday, April 16, 2019 at 6:00 pm.  Director	Townsend	is	scheduled	to	attend. 

Correction	to	meeting	date	is	Tuesday,	July	16,	at	6:00	pm.	
 

	
26.	 CLOSED	SESSION	
No closed session was scheduled or held. 

10



Minutes of the CAWD Regular Board meeting held April 25, 2019 – 9:00 a.m. 

10 

 

 
27.	 ADJOURNMENT	
There	being	no	further	business	to	come	before	the	Board,	the	President	adjourned	the	meeting	at	
10:30	a.m.	The	next	regular	meeting	will	be	held	at	9:00a.m.,	Thursday,	May	30,	2019	or	an	
alternate	acceptable	date,	in	the	Board	Room	of	the	District	Office,	3945	Rio	Road,	Carmel,	CA	93923.	 
	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Respectfully	Submitted:	 	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 __________________________________________________	

Domine	Barringer,	Board	Secretary	

APPROVED:	
	
________________________________________________	
Ken	White,	Board	President	

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21

barringer
Highlight



22

barringer
Highlight



23

barringer
Highlight



24

barringer
Highlight



25

barringer
Highlight



26

barringer
Highlight



27

barringer
Highlight



28

barringer
Highlight



29

barringer
Highlight



30

barringer
Highlight



31

barringer
Highlight



32

barringer
Highlight



33

barringer
Highlight



34

barringer
Highlight



35

barringer
Highlight



36

barringer
Highlight



37

barringer
Highlight



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



 
  

 

STAFF REPORT     
 

TO:    Board of Directors 

 

FROM:  Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 

 

DATE:            May 30, 2019   
         
SUBJECT:  Monthly Report – April 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 

             

Permits Issued 

 

Sewer Lateral Permits issued in April    ….....................                                                        20 

 

Total Fees.......................................................................................................  $ 3005.00 

 

 

Maintenance  

 

Attached is a map of the locations cleaned in past three months. There were no Closed 

Circuit Television (CCTV) sewer line inspections during the month of April.   

 

 

Cleaning period  Footage Cleaned  Percentage Cleaned  Size of Pipe Cleaned 

February  44,081 ft.  10.72%  6 – 12 inches 

March  32,789 ft.  7.97%  6 – 12 inches 

April  45,753 ft.  11.13%  6 – 10 inches 

 

 

 

 

45



 
  

 

Construction Activities 

 

A sub‐contractor doing the paving work for PG&E Gas line replacement project 

installed 23 new composite frame and lids during April.  

 

 

General Comments 

 

Staff attended the Annual CWEA Training Conference  

 

 

 

Service Calls Responded to By Crew 

 

Date  Time  Callout  Resolution 

4/1/19  3:37 PM  Lateral Overflow  Called by homeowner for a lateral 

spill, owner advised to call their 

plumber. 

4/2/19  9:49 AM  Noise coming from internal 

plumbing of home 

Homeowner heard noise in plumbing 

that was cause by District cleaning 

the main sewer line. Informed 

homeowner that the noise was a by‐

product of sewer line maintenance.  

 

4/15/19  11:40 AM  Lateral Overflow  Called by homeowner for a lateral 

spill, owner advised to call their 

plumber. 

 

 

USA Location Requests – 157 

                                           

         Plumbing permit inspections – 18 

 

FUNDING 

N/A 

 

   

46



5/20/2019

47

lauer
Text Box
February (Green) - 44,081 feetMarch (Yellow) -     32,789 feetApril (Red) -           45,753 feet                            Monthly Cleaning Map 



STAFF REPORT 
 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 

 

Date:    May 30, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report for April 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

 

Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 
 
DISCUSSION  

 

Safety & Training 

April 4‐ Tailgate training. Greg Ange, Mechanic II/Operator I, gave a presentation on 

Heat Illness Prevention. Using California Sanitary Risk Management Association 

(CSRMA) approved training materials, Greg covered the types of heat illness, how the 

body handles heat, how humidity impacts body cooling, general prevention strategies 

and specific prevention practices.  

 

April 11‐ Tailgate training.  Robert Bowman, Collections Worker III, presented on 

“working safely.” The presentation began with a description of how safety is improved 

when everyone makes safety part of a work “lifestyle.” This is aligned with the safety 

culture that is being promoted by management. He also emphasized that when one 

employee sets a good example, fellow employees will also adopt safe habits.  

 

April 18‐ Tailgate training.  Mark Dias, Safety/Compliance Administrator (S/C Admin 

Dias), presented on the need to identify and report ergonomic hazards during routine 

work. Christian Schmidt, a senior operator, had requested that S/C Admin Dias observe 

a common, recurring task at headworks. The task was awkward and strenuous and 

could lead to potential back injuries. While there had been no injuries, S/C Admin Dias 

agreed it was an ergonomic hazard and is looking at improvements. Dias requested that 

all staff point out any ergonomic hazards instead of ignoring them or tolerating them as 

“standard” or “routine.”   

 

48



 

Ongoing Safety Improvements 

During April Maintenance Superintendent Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to 

implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the 

Safety Committee. Many of the physical safety improvements are projects extending 

over weeks or months.  Activities in April included: 

 Respiratory Safety – gas levels at the Calle La Cruz lift station (Ribera Road). 

Background; As described in previous reports, this lift station receives wastewater 

from the Carmel Highlands. The longer travel‐time allows the anaerobic generation 

of dangerous hydrogen sulfide gas. Gas levels were high enough to warrant locking 

the hatch and preventing access until the gas could be mitigated.  Four options were 

identified and are being tried in order of increasing cost. The first two options 

proved ineffective. The third option, dosing liquid calcium nitrate, was started in 

December and showed significant improvement. The dosage rate was increased in 

January/February. The results showed some additional improvement but did not fall 

in proportion to the dosage increase. Update; Collections staff considered whether 

the remaining gas levels were from Pt. Lobos State Parks. This is a second effluent 

stream pumped separately to Ribera Road. Before constructing and installing a 

second dosing system at Pt. Lobos, Collections staff again increased the dosage at 

the Highlands lift station. This approach should determine whether Highlands truly 

is the source of the gas, or if not, that a second dosing system at Pt. Lobos is justified. 

The dosage was increased in early May with ongoing gas level data collection. 

Results to be reported in June. Monthly tracking continuing. 

 Bulk aqueous ammonia system repairs.  Background; As described in previous 

reports, CAWD receives bulk deliveries of 19% aqueous ammonia approximately 

once per month. The bulk tank is located outdoors on the south side of the tertiary 

building with permanent secondary containment. Newly implemented gas 

monitoring equipment showed that ammonia vapors are escaping out of the tank lid 

during the filling process.  Operations staff have consistently been required to wear 

respirators during deliveries. Until the system is improved, an Interim Operating 

Procedure (IOP) has been promulgated and deliveries are overseen by the Safety 

Officer. Per the IOP staff are now required to remotely monitor the tank level at a 

safe distance using the wireless Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 

system rather than stand near the tank during filling. CAWD staff intends to retrofit 

the piping and venting components rather than purchasing a replacement system. A 

pressure gauge was installed to determine the pressures generated during filling. 

The pressures were monitored during a delivery and showed that the tank lid 

essentially held zero pressure and ammonia levels were very high around the lid. 

Update: A new, non‐vented lid was ordered and placed onto the tank. The pressure 

was monitored during a recent delivery and the system still does not hold pressure. 

While the lid sealant material is suspected, staff needs to rule out other leak 

49



locations. Sulphur sticks were ordered which will give an immediate visual 

indicator (white vapor) so staff can try to pinpoint the leak. Once the system can be 

sealed, internal pressures during filling will be documented. The plant engineer will 

use this data to calculate specifications to retrofit the piping, connections and relief 

valves. Monthly tracking continuing. 

 

Tours and Outreach 

April was a busy month for tours and outreach:  

 On April 3, tours were given to fifty‐three Sophomore/Junior chemistry students 

from Notre Dame all‐girls school in Salinas. This was the first, of hopefully many, 

tours for Norte Dame students.  

 On April 9, S/C Admin Dias gave presentations to four Carmel High School 

Advanced Placement (AP) science classes (approximately 100 students). The AP 

classes are for juniors/seniors who are preparing for their AP exams. Wastewater 

treatment is now a topic on these exams, and students are expected to know how the 

activated sludge process works and what contaminants are removed at the primary, 

secondary and tertiary stages of treatment. The classes included a “mini‐lab” where 

activated sludge from the plant is observed under microscopes and the students are 

asked to identify different micro‐organisms and estimate the age of the sludge.  

 On the following day tours were given to all four Carmel High classes.  

 

Injuries; first aid responses; worker compensation claims 

There were no worker’s comp injuries/claims in April.  There was one first aid incident 

where an employee sustained a superficial cut to a knuckle. The cut was cleaned, 

bandaged and the employee returned to work without further complications. The 

updated matrix is below. 

 

  Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2018 Reporting Year  

TYPE 

New  

Incidents 

(Month) 

Total  

Incidents (Year)

Total Days Away 

from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 

Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 

lost  

(Year) 

OSHA 

Injuries 
0  0  0  0  0 

OSHA 

Illnesses 
0  0  0  0  0 

Other WC 

Claims 
0  0  0  0  0 

First Aid 

(non‐OSHA) 
1  3  0  0  0 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

50



% of Total MG

61.482 67.34

38.518 37.72

100.00 105.05

18.560 46.58

87.845 63.60

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1770.27 1692.20 1678.08 1883.03

1780.18 2260.45 2164.89 2254.65

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) Micro Turbine system off‐line the month of February due to equipment malfunction

(3) Discrepentency between the Influent and Outfall flow is due to the Outfall flow meter malfunctioning

CAWD  1407.39

20,442.26$                             

6,014.36$     

Reclamation

1374.11 1601.12

Reclaim Total

21,715.86$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.139$             

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                   

207,184.00

0.000

Ocean Discharge (3)

Price per kWh

0.132$             

CAWD Total

Feb'19

0.000

1.43340.133

Monthly Totals

2.331

0.898

0.193

1.010

Feb '19 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

25.143

65.276

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

57.342

CAWD Total   

19,162.99$   

0.428

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

1.006 1.915

2019 YEAR‐TO‐DATE

acre‐feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

0 (2)

Nov'18

5,495

2 QTR

10,296.25$                             

Jan'19Feb '19 KWh 

31,457.60$                             

kW‐h Per Acre Foot

0

Dec'18

6,251.31$     

15,952.35$                             

13,319.23$                             

703,885.00

29,271.58$                             

6,671.63$                                

0

Nov '18

2017

Accumulated Totals

26,054.04$                             

34,093.00

163,944.00

63,098.24

27,475.90$                             

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: February 

2019

12.115

2.048

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production             

COMMENTS

MF/RO

46.58MG (142.95acre‐ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94‐19)               

20,346.02$   

7,033.64$                                

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

7,268.91$     

0.134$             

43,240.00

25,414.30$   27,730.22$   

19,382.41$                             

12,687.06$   

0.157$              21,161.35$                             

9,880.24$     

Dec'18

115.70

195.10

0.000

314.93 MG (966.51 acre‐ft.)

0.000

1.434

0.753

Jan'19

1.433

1.620

3.935

322.25

7.96 BG (24.43 B acre‐ft.)

3.348

206.56

142.88

0.000

25,312.52$                             

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

2000.04

1923.82

1 QTR 3 QTR

2579.46 1871.10

Reclamation Total                       

97,191.24 17,149.15$    33,033.08$   

2018

19,566.85$                                

1813.37

51



0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

52



% of Total MG

59.183 101.65

40.817 61.38

100.00 163.02

0.000 46.58

110.316 127.55

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1174.96 N/A N/A N/A

2344.93 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) Micro Turbine system off‐line the month of March due to equipment malfunction

1780.18 2260.45

Reclamation Total                       

16,956.52 3,754.31$      17,149.15$   

2019

19,348.50$                                

2164.89

11,432.90$                             

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

0.000

3.067

500.07

7.96 BG (24.43 B acre‐ft.)

2.443

311.79

142.88

0.000

Jan'19

188.28

391.26

0.000

302.25 MG (927.62 acre‐ft.)

0.000

1.505

0.000

Feb'19

1.093

1,689.48$     

0.139$             

44,753.60

27,730.22$   27,027.09$   

20,442.26$                             

9,880.24$     

0.172$              20,346.02$                             

2,064.83$     

COMMENTS

MF/RO

46.58MG (142.95acre‐ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94‐19)               

7,268.91$     

6,251.31$                                

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: March 

2019

0.000

2.063

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production             

0

Dec '18

2018

Accumulated Totals

27,475.90$                             

4,953.00

150,233.00

12,003.52

25,414.30$                             

Jan'19

6,014.36$     

21,161.35$                             

10,296.25$                             

703,885.00

31,457.60$                             

7,033.64$                                

0 (2)

Dec'18

0

2 QTR

12,687.06$                             

Feb'19Mar '19 KWh 

33,033.08$                             

kW‐h Per Acre Foot

0

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.956 1.350

2019 YEAR‐TO‐DATE

acre‐feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

23.661

57.969

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

63.949

CAWD Total   

21,715.86$   

0.549

Mar'19

0.000

1.10734.308

Monthly Totals

1.870

0.763

1.289

0.000

Mar '19 kWh

0.143$             

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                   

194,986.60

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.137$             

CAWD Total

CAWD  1770.27

19,162.99$                             

6,406.28$     

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

20,620.81$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

53



0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

54



% of Total MG

61.531 126.79

35.915 75.47

97.45 202.26

57.736 69.23

43.729 144.71

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR

1174.96 N/A N/A N/A

2344.93 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) Micro Turbine system off‐line the month of April due to equipment malfunction

CAWD  1770.27

21,715.86$                             

7,660.09$     

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

20,378.22$   

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.153$             

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                   

194,527.92

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.141$             

CAWD Total

Apr'19

0.000

1.30824.143

Monthly Totals

1.308

0.470

0.122

0.755

Apr '19 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

14.092

39.237

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

17.158

CAWD Total   

20,620.81$   

0.408

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

1.166 1.457

2019 YEAR‐TO‐DATE

acre‐feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

0 (2)

Jan'19

0

2 QTR

9,880.24$                                

Mar'19Apr '19 KWh 

17,149.15$                             

kW‐h Per Acre Foot

0

Feb'19

6,406.28$     

20,346.02$                             

12,687.06$                             

703,885.00

33,033.08$                             

6,251.31$                                

0

Jan'19

2018

Accumulated Totals

25,414.30$                             

110,877.00

144,516.00

54,990.20

27,730.22$                             

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: April 

2019

22.654

0.572

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production             

COMMENTS

MF/RO

69.23MG (212.47acre‐ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94‐19)               

1,689.48$     

6,014.36$                                

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

18,985.21$   

0.144$             

50,011.92

27,027.09$   28,038.31$   

19,162.99$                             

2,064.83$     

0.168$              7,268.91$                                

9,247.47$     

Feb'19

231.50

443.89

0.000

309.19 MG (948.90 acre‐ft.)

0.000

1.166

0.000

Mar'19

0.568

1.174

1.667

620.42

7.98 BG (24.50 B acre‐ft.)

1.457

388.92

212.37

0.000

35,785.34$                             

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR

1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

1780.18 2260.45

Reclamation Total                       

165,867.20 28,232.68$    3,754.31$     

2019

20,485.65$                                

2164.89

55



0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

May 18 Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

56



STAFF REPORT  
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Ray De Ocampo 

Laboratory/Environmental Compliance 

Supervisor 

 

Date:    May 30, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report – April 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive Report‐Informational only; No action required 

 

 
DISCUSSION 
LABORATORY REPORT 

 Laboratory staff is continuing the Headworks analysis project for plant                  

operations. 

 Ms. Mui attended the California Water Environment Association (CWEA) 

Annual Conference April 8‐12, 2019. 

 Mr. De Ocampo and Ms. Mui attended a 40‐ hour Hazardous Waste Operations 

and Emergency Response Training class to get certified in assisting plant 

operations.  The training was on April 15‐19, 2019 at CALINC in Vacaville. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 CAWD Environmental Compliance staff had completed 22 stormwater and 

source control inspections this month.   

 

 

Restaurant Inspection Table 

 

Restaurant 

 

Compliant 

Reason for Non‐

Compliance 

 

Comments 

Carmel Bistro Giovanni  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Carmel Bouchee  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

57



La Balena  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

IL Grillo  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Pasta Palate  Yes    Stormwater Inspection* 

Affina Food and Wine  No  Excessive Grease, 

Warning Issued 

and follow up 

required 

Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection,  

Follow up inspection was 

compliant. 

Katy’s Place   Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

IL Foranio  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Café Carmel Coffee  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Patissiere Boisseriere  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Little Swiss Café  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

La Bicycelette  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Village Corner  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

 

Flaherty’s Seafood and 

Grill 

No  Excessive Grease, 

Warning Issued 

and follow up 

required 

Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection.  

Follow up inspection was 

compliant. 

Cantinetta de Luca  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Enzo’s Ristorante  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

The TreeHouse Café  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

La Auberge Carmel  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Friar Tuck’s  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

Carmel Belle  Yes    Stormwater Inspection*, 

SC Inspection 

58



* denotes that City of Carmel Environmental Compliance Manager is reviewing 

inspection notes to see if follow up is needed. 

                                                                                                                                                             

 

Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspection Table 

Grocery 

Store/Delicatessen 

 

Compliant 

Reason for Non‐

Compliance 

 

Comments 

Nielsen Brothers Market  NA  NA  Stormwater Inspection 

only* 

5th Avenue Deli  NA  NA  Stormwater Inspection 

only* 

 

Restaurant Compliance Table 

Date  Maintenance  Mechanical 

Feb 2019  100%  100% 

March 2019  100%  100% 

April 2019  100%  100% 

 

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐Informational item only 

59



ID Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost

0 Projects Implementation Plan Schedule Mon 4/2/18 Tue 6/30/26 $22,353,000.00

1 Treatment Plant Projects Mon 4/2/18 Tue 6/30/26 $14,124,000.00

2 18-01 Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge Holding 
Tank Replacement Project

Treanor Mon 4/30/18 Thu 11/4/21 $8,875,000.00

8 18-02 Ops Building Historian and Reporting Foley Mon 4/2/18 Sun 6/30/19 $140,000.00

12 18-03 CMMS Improvements Foley Wed 7/11/18 Fri 6/28/19 $100,000.00

15 18-10 Aeration Basin Improvements 18/19 
(PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Waggoner Wed 6/27/18 Tue 6/25/19 $100,000.00

21 18-04 PLC Replacement Project (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Treanor/Foley Fri 5/4/18 Tue 6/25/19 $400,000.00

26 18-09 Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab Waggoner Thu 7/5/18 Tue 6/11/19 $250,000.00

30 18-05 PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Foley Mon 10/8/18 Tue 7/13/21 $300,000.00

41 18-08 Standby Power Reliability Project Treanor Mon 10/8/18 Fri 10/23/20 $730,000.00

47 18-06 Disinfection Analyzer Project (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Waggoner/Young Mon 1/7/19 Mon 11/18/19 $150,000.00

51 18-07 Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and 
Cleaning

Treanor/Young Fri 3/15/19 Fri 3/6/20 $150,000.00

58 18-11 Microturbine Integration Project Treanor/Foley Tue 6/4/19 Tue 6/30/20 $510,000.00

63 Critical Process Onsite Flood Mitigations 
(PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Mon 6/29/20 $100,000.00

64 Aeration Basin Improvements 19/20 Waggoner Mon 7/1/19 Thu 4/30/20 $140,000.00

67 19-10 1 Water Corrosion Control Waggoner Mon 7/1/19 Fri 6/12/20 $30,000.00

68 Cathodic Protection Testing Treanor Wed 7/3/19 Tue 6/30/20 $30,000.00

69 18-28 Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 6/30/26 $120,000.00

70 Plant Fence Replacement Treanor Mon 12/2/19 Tue 7/20/21 $150,000.00

74 Effluent Building Wet Well Mixing Waggoner Mon 2/3/20 Tue 6/30/20 $60,000.00

75 Cart Charging and Parking Foley Mon 2/3/20 Fri 8/13/21 $50,000.00

76 Operations Bldg Basement Renovation Waggoner Mon 2/3/20 Tue 6/30/20 $50,000.00

77 Plant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 3/29/22 $0.00

78 Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs Treanor Fri 1/1/21 Mon 3/29/21 $44,000.00

81 Lagoon Crossing Rehabilitation Treanor Tue 2/1/22 Wed 6/1/22 $300,000.00

82 RAS Pump/Piping Rehab Treanor Tue 2/1/22 Wed 6/1/22 $0.00

83 Lunch Room MCC Replace with 
Panelboard

Foley Wed 6/1/22 Thu 11/3/22 $140,000.00

86 Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Manuals Treanor Tue 4/3/18 Wed 7/24/24 $1,205,000.00

87 18-14 Sea Level Rise Study Treanor Tue 4/3/18 Tue 12/4/18 $220,000.00

88 Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan Treanor Fri 11/1/19 Tue 9/1/20 $35,000.00

89 Life Expectancy Analysis Treanor Wed 9/2/20 Fri 7/2/21 $35,000.00

90 Online O&M Manual Treanor Wed 9/1/21 Wed 7/24/24 $150,000.00

91 Reclamation Projects Wed 5/9/18 Tue 12/1/20 $765,000.00

Treatment Plant Projects

Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project

Ops Building Historian and Reporting

CMMS Improvements

tion Basin Improvements 18/19 (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

LC Replacement Project (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab

PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Standby Power Reliability Project

Disinfection Analyzer Project (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and Cleaning

Microturbine Integration Project

Critical Process Onsite Flood Mitigations (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Aeration Basin Improvements 19/20

1 Water Corrosion Control

Cathodic Protection Testing

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Plant Fence Replacement

Effluent Building Wet Well Mixing

Cart Charging and Parking

Operations Bldg Basement Renovation

Plant Paving, Vault Lids, DrainagePlant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs

Lagoon C

RAS PRAS P

Lunc

Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Man

Sea Level Rise Study

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan

Life Expectancy Analysis

Reclamation Projects

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2018 2019 2020 2021

60



ID Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost

92 18-24 Reclamation Sand Filter Integration 
Project

Waggoner Wed 5/9/18 Sun 6/30/19 $100,000.00

98 18-26 RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and 
Containment

Treanor Fri 6/8/18 Wed 5/13/20 $415,000.00

103 18-25 EQ Basin Pump Electrical Foley Mon 10/8/18 Sun 6/30/19 $80,000.00

104 MF/RO Sound Barriers Treanor Tue 10/1/19 Mon 3/2/20 $35,000.00

105 Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection 
Testing

Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $25,000.00

106 Painting Project Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $75,000.00

107 Reclamation Studies Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Fri 5/29/20 $35,000.00

109 Collections Projects Mon 4/16/18 Tue 6/11/24 $8,229,000.00

110 19-02 Ordinances (Pretreatment and Admin 
Penalty)

Lather Fri 3/15/19 Sat 11/30/19 $0.00

111 18-16 Highlands H2S Control Lauer Mon 4/16/18 Fri 6/28/19 $0.00

113 18-17 Hatton Canyon Pipe Bursting Lather Wed 5/23/18 Wed 10/20/21 $1,450,000.00

114 18-18 Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement Foley/Lather Wed 7/18/18 Thu 2/13/20 $600,000.00

115 19-03 Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer 
Improvements

Lather Fri 3/15/19 Wed 2/10/21 $1,294,000.00

116 Monte Verde at 2nd Ave Sewer 
Replacement

Lather Thu 5/30/19 Thu 11/7/19 $150,000.00

117 19-07 Rio Road CIPP Lining Project Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 8/28/20 $1,340,000.00

118 18-27 Highlands FM ARVs Lauer Thu 8/1/19 Thu 11/14/19 $60,000.00

119 Highlands FM Flushing Lauer Tue 10/1/19 Mon 1/13/20 $75,000.00

123 Upper Rancho Canada Upsize Line Lather Wed 11/6/19 Tue 6/11/24 $1,500,000.00

124 Rancho Canada New Development Line Lather Wed 11/6/19 Tue 6/11/24 $1,500,000.00

125 Assessment Districts/Annexations Lather Tue 7/3/18 Wed 9/30/20 $0.00

126 18-21 Corona Road Assessment District Lather Thu 8/2/18 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00

127 19-05 Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection Lather Thu 8/2/18 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00

128 18-29 September Ranch Water and Sewer Service Lather Tue 9/25/18 Thu 9/26/19 $0.00

129 19-08 Carmel Valley Manor Sewer Lather Tue 7/3/18 Wed 9/30/20 $0.00

130 19-09 2019 Mass Annexation Lather Fri 3/15/19 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00

131 Collections Studies / Reports Lauer/Lather Thu 5/24/18 Thu 1/9/20 $260,000.00

132 18-22 Capacity Study/Asset Management Plan Lauer/Lather Thu 5/24/18 Mon 11/26/18 $100,000.00

133 18-23 New Connections Master Plan Lauer/Lather Thu 8/30/18 Sun 6/30/19 $0.00

134 Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment Lauer/Lather Fri 2/1/19 Wed 7/17/19 $75,000.00

135 19-04 Yankee Point and Otter Cove Highlands Extension Lather Mon 5/6/19 Thu 1/9/20 $55,000.00

136 19-06 Collection System SSMP Lauer/Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 11/1/19 $30,000.00

Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project

RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containment

EQ Basin Pump Electrical

MF/RO Sound Barriers

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection Testing

Painting Project

Reclamation Studies

Collections Projects

Ordinances (Pretreatment and Admin Penalty)

Highlands H2S Control

Hatton Canyon Pipe BurstingHatton Canyon Pipe Bursting

Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement

Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer Improvements

Monte Verde at 2nd Ave Sewer Replacement

Rio Road CIPP Lining Project

Highlands FM ARVs

Highlands FM Flushing

Upper Rancho

Rancho Canada 

Assessment Districts/Annexations

Corona Road Assessment District

Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection

September Ranch Water and Sewer Service

Carmel Valley Manor Sewer

2019 Mass Annexation

Collections Studies / Reports

pacity Study/Asset Management Plan

New Connections Master Plan

Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment

Yankee Point and Otter Cove Highlands Extension

Collection System SSMP

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2018 2019 2020 2021

61



 
 1 

 

 
 
Staff Report    
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Ed Waggoner                                               

Operations Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Report – April 2019 
 
DATE:            May 30, 2019               
      
               
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report-Informational only; no action required 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 

Plant Operation 
Treatment Plant: 
 
• The treatment plant in general is working well with Operational staff adjusting the  

secondary process parameters for the irrigation season that started in April. 
 
• Operations staff removed from service and drained the following basins during the  

month of April; Primary Clarifier #2, Secondary Clarifier #1, and Aeration Basins #5 & 
#6. 

 
• Project # 18-09 Operations and Maintenance staff preparing Secondary Clarifier #1 for  

gear drive mechanism and bridge replacement in late May and early June. Followed by 
media blasting and coating of the launders, weirs, and sludge collection system. 

 
• Project #18-10 Operations and maintenance staff preparing Aeration Basins #5 and # 6  

to replace influent slide gates and install the Environetics Director II Tank baffle System 
in each Aeration Basin. The installation is schedule for the week of June 17th, 2019. 

 

 

62



 
 2 

 
• April 2, Notre Dame High School from Salinas toured the treatment plant with 53  

students attending. 
 
• April 30th CAWD Management Staff toured the Food Slurry Debagging Project located  

at Johnson Canyon in Gonzales and operated by the Salinas Valley Solid Waste 
Authority (SVSWA). The purpose of the tour was to determine if CAWD could accept 
the food waste into the anerobic digester at the treatment facility. SVSWA is in the 
process of ordering and installing additional equipment so the food slurry can be 
transported by tanker truck to CAWD’s food waste receiving station. A pilot program can 
be ready to start in late June or early July of 2019. 

 
 
Reclamation: 
 
• CAWD Staff continues working with H2O Innovations. The Reverse Osmosis   

programming is completed with the Microfiltration programming scheduled to be 
completed in late April. A signed contract with H2O innovations is schedule to be 
completed in mid-May for final connections to take place. 

 
• Microfiltration and Reverse Osmosis started irrigation season on April 9th. Started Clean- 

in-Place (CIPs) of all Microfiltration and Reverse Osmosis membranes during the first 5 
weeks of operation.  

 
Training: 
 
• Plant in-house training continues with weekly Safety meetings.  
 
• Operations Superintendent moved the Friday training to Tuesday afternoon to  

accommodate personnel to the new operations work schedule. Training each week has 
Operations training (1 hour) on Operational Processes which is mandatory for Operations 
Staff and is available to Laboratory, Maintenance, Collection and any other CAWD 
employees.  

 
Capital Improvement Phase 2 
 
•    Staff continues to communicate with Patrick Treanor (CAWD) on Phase 2 assessments of  

plant equipment and planning for the following areas; Influent Pump Station, Headworks, 
Blower Building, Chlor/Dechlor Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 1, Digester 
No. 1 Control Building and Dewatering Building.  

 
 
 
Meetings Attended 

63



 
 3 

 
 Monterey County Water Awareness Committee meeting April 11th, 2019 at Monterey  
 Peninsula Water Management District offices in Monterey.  
 
 Monterey Water Works Association Board meeting April 11th in Moss Landing. 
 
 Ed Waggoner and Greg Ange attended the Advisory Committee meeting for Gavilan  
 College Water Program on April 17th for future water/wastewater classes. 
 
Discharge Permit Violations 
 
•           No Reclamation Permit 93-72 discharge violations for the month of April 2019. 
 
•           No Violations on the NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) NPDES  
            Number CA0047996, Order No. R3-2014-0012 for the month of April 2019. 
  
 
FUNDING 
 
N/A-Informational item only 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Edward Waggoner 
 
 
         
 
 
         
 
  
 

64



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    May 30, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Maintenance Report – April 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress 

 

 Installation of the new Operations Building Programmable Logic Controller 

(PLC) is in progress. The new “OPS PLC” will replace the existing PLC‐1 which 

is the main plant PLC. The conduit and control cabinet installations are being 

completed by Bryan Mailey Electric.  

 

 The repair parts have arrived for the microturbine gas compression system. Staff 

is completing the repair and once completed the 30‐kilowatt microturbine can be 

placed back online.  

 

 Maintenance staff is working with Collections staff on upgrading the pump 

station ultrasonic level controllers. The new level controllers are replacing the 

existing obsolete model and will all be standardized on the same model.  

 

Upcoming Maintenance Projects 

 

 Maintenance staff is preparing for the replacement of the aeration basin 5 and 6 

gates. This work requires installation of temporary scaffolding in the basins and 

a crane to remove the old gates and locate the new gates.  

 

 Staff is working on preparations for the secondary clarifier coating and 

mechanical drive installation. The work will be completed by contractors with 

65



staff oversite and support. Bryan Mailey Electric has completed a material list 

and is working with the vendor on electrical requirements.  

 

Staff Development 

 

 Staff received onsite training on Variable Frequency Drive configuration.  The 

training was provided Edges Electrical Distributors and Schneider Electric.  

 

Work Order Metrics 

Preventive Maintenance      

       
Total Work Orders Generated      266

Total Work Orders Closed/Done      247

Total Work Orders Still Open      19

Percentage of Work Orders Completed      92.86%

       
Corrective Maintenance      
 

         

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

  Emergency  3       

  Critical   7       

  Urgent  10       

  Routine  12       
 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

66



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:              May 30, 2019 
 

Subject:          General Engineering 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required. 
 
 

DISCUSSION 

This report is provided to update the Board on current engineering activities. 

 

General Engineering 

 

The General Manager and Principal Engineer met with Carmel Valley Manor 

representatives in order to discuss funding of their sewer extension project and the 

status of the 2019 Annexation with Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO).  

MNS Engineers have the contract for the design work for Carmel Valley Manor and a 

project kick‐off meeting is scheduled for May 28. 

 

The contract with Denise Duffy and Associates for the 2019 Annexation project work 

has been signed and they are planning to schedule a kick‐off meeting at the end of May. 
 
 
 

Clear Peak Development has provided the funding for the due diligence engineering 

study of September Ranch water system by SRT Consultants (SRT).  A project kick‐off 

meeting occurred on April 17,2019 and SRT is collecting and reviewing information as 

it is provided by Clear Peak.  The District received two proposals for completing a 

rate study (Raftelis and Bartle Wells Associates) and Raftelis has been selected to do 

the work.  Clear Peak has signed the agreement with the District to fund this work 

and a check has been received. 

 

Dan Keig has not signed the agreement or provided funding for the Yankee Point 

Project design contract with MNS.  The Principal Engineer continues to work with the 

General Manager to resolve this issue with Mr. Keig. 

67



 

The Principal Engineer is continuing to work with the Corona Road representatives in 

order to facilitate their work to form an assessment district to connect to the District 

sewer system. 

 

Collections 

 

The Principal Engineer and General Manager participated in a conference call with 

California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) and Federal Emergency 

Management Agency (FEMA) on May 16, 2019 regarding the grant for replacement of 

the Hatton Canyon pipeline.   They had questions regarding project details, requested 

copies of US Army Corps of Engineer’s permit applications and submittals, and a 

copy of the current project plans.  FEMA said that once they receive this information, 

we will be notified whether we are going to be awarded a grant for the project. 

  

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

 

68



 

STAFF REPORT         

 

               
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 

 

Subject:    Contract Award Recommendation – Sewage Lift Station Control Panel 

Upgrades‐Programmable Logic Control Equipment  

 

Date:     May 30, 2019 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

After review of the bid proposals, staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 

 Adopt a resolution awarding a contract for the Sewage Lift Station Control Panel 

Upgrades‐Programmable  Logic  Control  (PLC)  Equipment  procurement  in  the 

amount  of  $184,000.00  to  the  lowest  qualified  responsible  bidder  ‐  Technical 

Systems Incorporated (TSI).  

 Authorize  the General Manager  to sign and execute a contract with TSI  for  the 

equipment procurement.  

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The board approved Resolution No. 2019‐13 on March 28, 2019 authorizing solicitation 

of bids for procurement of Sewage Lift Station Control Panel Upgrades‐PLC 

Equipment.  Four sealed bids were opened on May 8, 2019 at the District office. The 

following is a tally of the bids received: 

 

BIDDER  BID AMOUNT 

Engineer’s Estimate  $350,000 

CALCON  $201,910 

Technical Systems Inc.  $184,000 

 

69



TESCO  $274,000 

The Automation Group (TAG)  $186,657.61 

 

The  lowest qualified  responsible bidder was determined  to be Technical Systems  Inc. 

Technical Systems Incorporated did PLC work at the CAWD Treatment Plant for both  

Phase 1 and 2 of the control panel upgrades. The were no issues with the previous work 

by TSI, and TSI has a good  reputation as a PLC  shop and  system  integrator. See bid 

tabulation from Technical Systems Inc. in Figure 1. 

 

The Engineers Estimate for the project was $350,000 and was formulated from the PLC 

line  item  costs  received  for  previous  work.  All  bids  were  significantly  below  the 

Engineer’s Estimate but were  competitive  between bidders. The  lower bids  are most 

likely due to the control panel designs being the same for all seven pump stations which 

can be set up and completed easily.    

 

Figure 1:  Technical Systems Inc. Bid Tabulation 

 

Bid Item  Unit Quantity Unit Cost, 

Dollars 

Cost, Dollars

1. Shop Drawing 

Submittals 

1  LS  N/A    $    7,000.00 

2. PLC Control Panels, 

complete, delivered to 

Carmel WWTP 

7  LS  N/A    $177,000.00 

Total Bid Amount 

(Sum of all Work Items 1‐2) 

Amount in Numbers                                                                        $184,000,00 

Amount in Words  One Hundred and Eighty‐Four Thousand Dollars 

 

 

FUNDING 

 

The  FY19/20  CAWD  Collections  Capital  Budget  includes  $600,000  for  SCADA 

Replacement‐All Pump Stations.  The remaining funds will be used for installation and 

engineering support.   

 

  

 

70



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐16 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR THE SEWAGE LIFT STATION 

CONTROL PANEL UPGRADES – PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC CONTROL (PLC) 

EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $184,000 TO THE LOWEST 

QUALIFIED RESPONSIBLE BIDDER – TECHNICAL SYSTEMS INCORPORATED 

(TSI) AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAID 

CONTRACT 

 

‐oOo‐ 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors authorized solicitation for bids for 

procurement of Sewage Lift Station Panel Upgrades – PLC Equipment at the March 28, 

2019 meeting with Resolution 2019‐13; and  

WHEREAS, there were four bids received at the bid opening on May 8, 2019 and 

the lowest responsible bid was determined to be Technical Systems Inc. (TSI); and 

WHEREAS, the Engineers estimate for the project was $350,000 and all bids were 

significantly less but were competitive between bidders.  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District, that accepts and awards the lowest bid to TSI in the amount 

of $184,000 and authorizes the General Manager to execute a contract with TSI for the 

equipment procurement.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 30, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

 

71



               

      _____________________________ 

            President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

 

72



STAFF REPORT 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  May 30, 2019 
 
Subject: Reclamation Budget 2019-20 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution approving the CAWD/PBCSD 
Fiscal Year 2019-20 Reclamation Project Budget. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget was approved at the 
Finance Officer’s Working Group and Technical Advisory Committee group levels.  Final 
approval was given by the Reclamation Management Committee (RMC) at its May 8, 2019 
meeting.  A copy of the Project 2019-20 Budget is attached. 
 
Items approved by the RMC are brought to CAWD or PBCSD Board, as appropriate, for 
approval and any applicable resolution. 
 
 
FUNDING 
 
All Reclamation Project funding is covered by the Project or by the Pebble Beach Company and 
Independent Reclaimed Water Users Group, as project guarantors. 
 
 
 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83

barringer
Highlight



84

barringer
Highlight



85

barringer
Highlight



86

barringer
Highlight



87



88



89

barringer
Highlight



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐17 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CAWD/PBCSD FISCAL YEAR 2019‐20 

RECLAMATION PROJECT BUDGET 

 

‐oOo‐ 

 

WHEREAS, the attached CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2019‐20 

Budget was approved at the Finance Officer’s Working Group and Technical Advisory 

Committee group levels and final approval was given by the Reclamation Management 

Committee (RMC) at its May 8, 2019 meeting; and 

WHEREAS, items approved by the RMC are brought to the CAWD or PBCSD 

Board, as appropriate, for approval and any applicable resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that it does hereby adopt the attached CAWD/PBCSD 

Reclamation Project Fiscal Year 2019‐20 Budget. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 30, 2019, by the following vote: 

AYES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:     BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

          ________________________________________________ 

          President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Secretary of the Board 

119



 
STAFF REPORT       
                 

 

   
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 

 

Subject:    Wastewater Treatment Plant Process Computer Modeling – Greeley and 

Hanson 

 

Date:    May 30, 2019 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the General 

Manger  to  execute  a  Professional  Services Agreement with Greeley  and Hanson  for 

development of  a  treatment plant process  computer model  in  an  amount not  exceed 

$49,720. 

 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

CAWD staff are continually seeking to further optimize the operation of the wastewater 

treatment  plant.  The  CAWD  facility  is  currently  operated  based  on  original  design 

parameters  and  generally  accepted  wastewater  treatment  guidelines.  Biological 

wastewater treatment is characterized by complex reaction kinetics which is not easily 

gleaned from operating under original design conditions and from operating experience 

alone. Further improvements to operator knowledge of the complex kinetics would be 

aided by development of a customized computer model of the treatment processes. 

 

Treatment  process  modeling  is  a  widely  used  tool  for  optimizing  treatment  plant 

functions and increasing the understanding of how changes in operating parameters and 

operating  modes  will  affect  the  process.  Modeling  is  conducted  using  proprietary 

software which was developed specifically for biological wastewater treatment plants. 

 

120



One  of  the  most  widely  used  model  software  packages  is  “BioWin”.  See  attached 

brochure from BioWin for more information. 

 

In order  for  the BioWin model  to be verified CAWD will need  to  run more  intensive 

influent  and  secondary  effluent  sample  tests  for  14 days  to provide  a  suite  of water 

quality data that will be used to calibrate the model. The current plan is for some of the 

additional sample tests to be conducted in‐house and some sent out to a contract lab for 

analysis. 

 

Once  the  initial model  is built  and verified CAWD would have  the  option  to model 

potential changes to modes of operation in the model before implementing the changes 

in the plant. Future modeling would carry additional cost to have the consultant rerun 

the model under different conditions, or to purchase the software package so that model 

projections could be developed in house. The BioWin software currently costs $8,000 for 

a perpetual license or about $2,500 for annual subscription. 

 

Attachment: 

1. Proposal – Greeley and Hanson 

2. BioWin Brochure 

 

FUNDING 

     

The funding for the modeling by Greeley and Hanson and for additional water quality 

testing would come from the Operations & Maintenance Budget – Admin Dept as 

follows: 

   

2018‐19  Budget Amount Proposed Draw Down

Engineering  #5500.007  $125,000  $25,000 

Contingency #6070.007  $ 70,000  $24,720 

 

121



 
 
 
 
 

1 

 
 
         50 California Street, Suite 1500 
         San Francisco, California 94111 
         p. 415 412 1380 
         www.greeley-hansen.com  
 
 
April 22, 2019 
Mr. Patrick Treanor 
Plant Engineer 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
3945 Rio Rd. 
Carmel-By-The- Sea, CA 93922 

 

Subject: Proposal to Perform Consulting Engineering Services to Develop and Validate Water Pollution Control 
Plant Process Model 

 
Dear Mr. Treanor, 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide this letter proposal in response to your request for Greeley and Hansen to 
provide the Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) with a Proposal to Perform Consulting Engineering Services to 
Develop and Validate Water Pollution Control Plant Process Model. Based on our conversations with you, it is our 
understanding that the goal of this project is to develop and validate a process model of the CAWD Water Pollution Control 
Plant (WPCP). The benefits of an updated and fully-functioning process model are the ability to evaluate various scenarios 
(e.g. wet weather events, increased influent loading conditions) and outcomes (i.e. effluent quality) of those scenarios. A 
process model also allows CAWD to evaluate how new unit processes or modifications to the WPCP’s liquid or solids 
stream will impact overall performance as well as optimize plant performance of the facility. 

 

Background:  
 
The CAWD Water Pollution Control Plant is a 3.0 million gallons per day (MGD) average annual permitted discharge flow 
facility that uses activated sludge for secondary treatment. The WPCP treats predominantly domestic wastewater. Current 
average dry weather flow (ADWF) is approximately 1.8 MGD which represents 60% of the permitted capacity or 45% of the 
design capacity (4.0 MGD). CAWD has an agreement with the Pebble Beach Community Services District (PBCSD) whereby 
PBCSD has access rights to one-third of the CAWD’s WPCP capacity. Of the 1.8 MGD ADWF, approximately 1.2 MGD (67%) 
is from CAWD and 0.6 MGD from PBCSD (33%). 
 
The proposed tasks to respond to CAWD’s inquiry are listed below. 
 

Task 1 - Data Collection 
 
 
 

122



 
 
 
 
 

2 

Task 1A - Collect Plant Operating and Infrastructure Data 

 
Under this task Greeley and Hansen will utilize the CAWD WPCP’s data for model development. Existing Monthly Operating 
Report (MOR) data (or similar) for the WPCP and as-built information will be the basis for the preliminary data analysis. A data 
request will be submitted by Greeley and Hansen and available information will be compiled and transmitted to Greeley and 
Hansen by CAWD. WPCP data of interest includes influent flows and loads, as well as operating data such as mixed liquor 
suspended solids (MLSS) concentration, return activated sludge (RAS) concentration and flow rate, etc. It is anticipated that 
three years of MOR data would be sufficient for modeling purposes. The data collected from the MORs will be plotted, 
categorized into dry weather and wet weather data, and subsequently analyzed.  
 

Key Deliverables: 
 Data request letter (via email) 

 Data review summary 

Schedule: 
 Data request within 5 days of Notice to Proceed 

 Data review summary within 30 days of receipt of available data 

Task 1B - Additional Sampling for Waste Characterization 

In addition to the MOR data, special sampling will be required to characterize the waste stream entering the WPCP. Additional 
sampling will be required to collect samples and analyze constituents that are not normally performed as a part of the normal 
plant operation. A general list of the parameters of interest is presented in the table below. These parameters provide a 
better description of the wastewater characteristics. 

 
 

 
  

Sampling Parameter 

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 

5-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5) 

Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand (cBOD) 

Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD) 

Filtered Flocculated COD (ffCOD) 

Volatile Suspended Solids (VSS) 

Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN) 

Soluble Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (sTKN) 

Ammonia (NH3) 

Nitrate + Nitrite (NOx) 

Alkalinity  

Volatile Fatty Acids (VFA) 

123



 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

3 

Greeley and Hansen will work with CAWD to generate a list of parameters and sampling locations that will be 
analyzed and examined. Greeley and Hansen will develop sampling protocols to perform sampling. CAWD will 
collect the required samples and CAWD will then perform the required laboratory analysis, either onsite or by an 
external certified laboratory. A minimum of fourteen (14) days of composite sampling is preferred for analyzing the 
parameters from the raw influent, primary, secondary, and final effluent. Costs for sampling and laboratory 
analysis are not included and are anticipated to be paid directly by CAWD. 
 

Key Deliverables: 
 

 List of parameters to be tested/analyzed, sampling locations and frequency of sampling 

CAWD’s Responsibility:  
 

 Provide collection of required samples 

 Perform laboratory analysis onsite (if feasible) or contract with offsite laboratory 

 Provide copy of sampling analyses results to Greeley and Hansen 

Schedule: 
 

 Within 30 days of Notice to Proceed 

Task 2 - Process Model  
 
Task 2A - Development of Process Model  
 
A process model, BioWin or GPS-X, will be used to model the WPCP and runs seasonal simulations (four 
simulations total) of the WPCP. Information obtained from Task 1 will be used to setup and calibrate the model.  
The model can also be used to develop a mass balance of the West WWTP in order to assess the potential solids 
production impacts of the WPCP on existing solids handling processes (not included in scope). Analyses may 
include, but are not limited to oxygen uptake rates, growth rates, and decay rates.  The data collected from a 
sampling program will allow the model to be refined, calibrated, and validated based on the actual plant specific 
parameters. 
 

Key Deliverables: 
 

 Calibrated model  

 Results of model scenarios  

 Model development memorandum (draft and final) 

Schedule: 
 

 Within 30 days of Notice to Proceed 

Task 3 - Site Visits and Workshops   
 
At the start of the evaluation, the Greeley and Hansen team will visit with the WPCP staff to discuss the project 
and anticipated outcomes, discuss the available information that is already being collected by CAWD, and 
determine the need for additional sampling, as necessary.  At the conclusion of the project, a final workshop to 

124



 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

4 

discuss the findings and recommendations will be presented to CAWD staff. A total of three (3) in-person 
meetings are included in this scope of work. 
 

Key Deliverables: 
 Meeting/Workshop Agendas and Notes 

CAWD’s Responsibility:  
 Attendance at meeting and Final Workshop 

 

Task 4 - Project Management    
Project management tasks will include project management, monthly project invoicing and budget management.    

 
Our Team: Process Evaluation  

Val S. Frenkel, PhD, PE, D. WRE will serve as the Project Manager with Ray David, PhD, PE as our lead process 
engineer. Technical and QA/QC support will be provided by Kam Law, PE.  

 
Fee Structure: 
The fee for the completion of the Tasks 1-4 as described herein will be completed for a lump sum fee of $49,720.   
 
 
Yours very truly,  
Greeley and Hansen LLC 
 
 
 
 
Val S. Frenkel, PhD, PE, D. WRE       
Principal, Managing Director, Vice President of Process Engineering Group, and Project Manager 

 

125



Proposal to Perform Consulting Engineering Services to Develop and Validate Water Pollution Control Process Model

Fee Structure

Val S Frenkel 

(Project Manager)

Ray David (Lead 

Process Engineer)

Kam Law 

(Technical 

Advisor)

Hours Hours Hours Travel Print Cost Hours Cost

Rates 315 250$                      242$                  

8 70 8 $0 $0 $0 86 $21,989

1A Collect plant operating and infrastructure data- 4 40 4

1. Monthly Operating Data, influent and effluent loads (past three years) - collection and analysis

2. Summarize infrastructure data from as builts

1B Additional Sampling for Waste Characterization- 4 30 4

1. Develop Sampling Plan

2. Analyze Sampling Data

4 76 16 $0 $0 $0 96 $24,171

1 Model Development 4 76 16

4 0 0 $2,300 $2,300 4 $3,560

1 Project  Management Tasks 4

16 146 24 2300 186 49,720$  

ODC's TotalTASK

ITEM TO 3 - Development of a Whole Plant Process Model 

TOTALS

TASK 1 - Data Collection

TASK 2 - Process Model Development

TASK 4 -  Project Management

126



BIOWIN 

WHAT IS BIOWIN  
USED FOR? 
   

BioWin is used to: 
 

 Select optimal treatment processes 

 Reduce capital investment 

 Explore strategies for reducing 

wastewater treatment plant energy 

consumption and operating costs 

 Evaluate expansion of existing 

treatment plants 

 Make daily decisions about plant 

operation 

 Teach students and operators 

fundamental wastewater treatment 

concepts 

 Build model extensions and conduct 

research into emerging technologies 

WHO USES  
BIOWIN? 
   

BioWin is used around the world by: 
 

 Consulting engineers 

 Infrastructure owners (e.g. cities, 

regional municipalities, water 

authorities) 

 Equipment manufacturers / suppliers 

 Wastewater treatment plant 

operations companies 

 Academic institutions 

THE ENVIROSIM TEAM 
Together, over 100 years of wastewater process modeling experience. 

www.envirosim.com · info@envirosim.com · tel +1 905-481-2607 · fax +1 905-481-2610  

WHY BIOWIN? 
BioWin wastewater process simulation software ties 
together biological, chemical, and physical process models to 
provide insight into the whole plant. BioWin simulations help engineers and operators make 
decisions that reduce capital and operating costs and ensure treatment objectives are met. 
BioWin has been a recognized leader in the simulation field for 25 years. 

127



BIOWIN KEY 
FEATURES 

 

 Integrated activated sludge / anaerobic 

digestion model enables whole-plant 

modeling from influent to effluent 

 Most accurate and intensively researched 

biological model reduces required 

calibration effort 

 Largest and 

most extensive 

number of state 

variables and 

components 

tracked 

 Modeling of 

anaerobic ammonia oxidizing bacteria for 

investigation of side- and main-stream 

deammonification strategies 

 Calculation of blower power 

requirements, taking into account factors 

such as inlet air temperature and relative 

humidity and pressure losses in the air 

delivery system 

www.envirosim.com info@envirosim.com  tel +1 905-481-2607 fax +1 905-481-2610  

 Ability to explore onsite power generation 

and heat 

recovery via 

CHP 

 Easily 

implement 

up to three 

different daily 

electricity 

tariff rates; these patterns can be 

different across two “seasons” (e.g. 

summer and winter) 

 Comprehensive and system wide pH 

model  

 Chemical and biological P removal 

 Spontaneous struvite precipitation 

 Comprehensive gas transfer modeling 

 Model development capability (Model 

Builder) 

BIOWIN 

128



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐18 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GREELEY AND HANSON FOR 

DEVELOPMENT OF A TREATMENT PLANT PROCESS COMPUTER MODEL IN 

AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $49,720 

 

‐oOo‐ 

 
WHEREAS, the District is continually seeking to optimize the operation of the 

wastewater treatment plant and recognizes that process modeling is a widely used tool 

for optimizing plant functions and increasing understand of how changes in operating 

parameters and operating modes will affect the process; and  

WHEREAS, staff recommends the District engage Greeley and Hanson for 

the development of a treatment plant process computer model in an amount not to 

exceed $49,720.   

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District, that it is convinced of the value of process 

computer modeling to optimize the plant and does hereby authorize the General 

Manager to enter into a contract with Greeley and Hanson in an amount not to 

exceed $49,720 to provide a treatment plant process computer model. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 30, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

 

 

129



 

              _____________________________ 

              President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

 

130



 
STAFF REPORT       
                 

 

   
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 

 

Subject:    FY 2019/2020 Sewer line Replacement Project  

    Monte Verde Extension and 2nd Avenue 

 

Date:    May 30, 2019 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution to authorize staff to solicit 
bids for replacement of 380 feet of 6-inch diameter vitrified clay pipe with 8-inch diameter 
Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) pipe. 
 
DISCUSSION 

 
The sewer line along Pescadero Creek is in extremely poor condition and is a high priority line 
for replacement.  Recently, CAWD staff were alerted that the homeowners of the section of 
pipeline at the end of Monte Verde Road were planning to repave their private road.  In order to 
be able to replace this section of the line without cutting into the new road, staff requested that 
the homeowners delay the work in order to allow CAWD to replace the 380 feet of sewer line. 
 
The plans and specifications of the sewer line replacement have been prepared by the Principal 
Engineer.  If approved, staff will open bids on  July 18, 2019 and  present a recommendation for 
award of an equipment contract to the lowest responsible bidder at the Board’s July 2019 
meeting.  It is anticipated that a Notice to Proceed will be issued in August 2019 and the work 
will commence after Labor Day.  All work is required to be completed by October 15, 2019. 
 
The project plans and specifications are available for review at the CAWD office. 
 
FUNDING 

     
The FY19/20 CAWD Collections Department Operations & Maintenance Budget includes 
$125,000 for sewer line repairs. The Engineer’s estimate for the project to be constructed under 
this contract is $80,000.  All will be funded from the CAWD budget. Actual costs will depend on 
bids received. 

 

131



 
� �

RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐19 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING INVITING BIDS FOR “2019/20 SEWER LINE 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT‐ MONTE VERDE EXTENSION AND 2ND AVENUE” 

 
-oOo- 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has received and reviewed staff’s report 

regarding the sewer line replacement project invitation for bids; 

WHEREAS, the plans and specifications for said work are on file and have been 

discussed this date with the Board by the District Manager; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District, as follows: 

1.  That the sewer line replacement plans and specifications are hereby 

authorized for bidding. 

2.  That sealed proposals or bids are hereby called for with regard to the 

aforesaid Project. 

3.   That the Secretary of the Board of Directors of the District is hereby 

directed to publish a Notice requesting bids for the aforesaid ʺFY 2019/20 Sewer Line 

Replacement Project‐ Monte Verde Extension and 2nd Avenueʺ once a week for two (2) 

consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation published in the District. Said 

publications shall not be less than five (5) days apart and the first publication shall be at 

least ten (10) days before the date fixed for the opening of bids. Said Notice shall refer to 

the plans and specifications on file in the office of the District Secretary. 

4.  Sealed proposals or bids shall be delivered to the Secretary of the Board of 

the Carmel Area Wastewater District on or before the time and date specified in the 

published Notice, at the office of the District, 3945 Rio Road, Post Office Box 221428, 

Carmel, California, 93922, said time being not less than ten (10) days from the time of 

the first publication of the Notice. Bids will be publicly opened and examined on said 

132



 
� �

date and hour by the District Secretary and will be referred to and considered by the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District Board at its next regular meeting following the 

opening of the bids in the Board Room of the District Office, 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, 

California. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 30, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS:   

 

____________________________ 

   President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

  Secretary to the Board      

133



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    May 30, 2019 

 

Subject:  Contract with ERS Industrial Services, Inc. for Coatings for the Project 18‐

09 Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehabilitation and 2018‐19 Budget 

Amendment in the amount of $18,948.  

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize  

 Award a contract to ERS Industrial Services, Inc in an amount not to exceed $127,190 

 Authorize the General Manager to enter into contract with ERS Industrial Services, 

Inc for said contract. 

 Authorize a budget amendment for an additional $18,948 from Capital Reserves to 

complete project.  

 Authorize a revision to Resolution #2018‐28 approved July 26, 2018 to reflect the 

changed conditions. 

 

DISCUSSION  
 
The District budgeted $250,000.00 in FY18‐19 for the clarifier rehabilitation project 

which included not only the coating work described herein, but also replacement of the 

center drive mechanism and bridge. A request to proceed with the coating work was 

presented as part of the overall project and was approved by the board at the July 26th, 

2018 board meeting (Resolution #2018‐28).  

 

In July 2018 the costs were presented as follows: 

Description  Amount 

Equipment  $117,896 

Coating/painting/blasting  $  72,000 

Electrical work  $  18,000 

Contingency  $  10,000 

Total $217,896 

 

134



Subsequent to the approval of Resolution #2018‐28 the coating/painting work was 

formally bid and we have now refined the total costs.  Staff is therefore requesting a 

revision to Resolution #2018‐28. 

 

The tasks included in this portion of the project are as follows: 

 

 Abrasive blasting to bare metal of all the metal components inside the clarifier.  

 Installation of dust controls and containment of the whole clarifier.  

 Shrink wrapping of the new clarifier bridge and mechanical drive to protect the 

machinery.  

 Removal and reinstallation of piping and conduits.  

 Coating of all the metal components below and above waterline with an Amine 

Cure spray applied epoxy. 

 

The coatings bid was publicly advertised and sent to multiple vendors. Only one bid 

was received. Staff requested a bid history from Monterey One Water to assess the 

quality of the bid. Monterey One Water responded with the bid history of the last two 

secondary clarifier coatings completed and the cost was $95,000 and $140,000 for their 

similar work that was completed 3 to 4 years ago. Based on this comparison staff is 

confident that the bid is reasonable for the specified work.  

 

 

FUNDING 

 

The estimated total cost of the project includes: 

 

Description  Amount 

Purchase & installation of the bridge and 

clarifier drive components 

$126,758 

Electrical work  $  15,000 

Blasting & Protective Coating Work  $127,190 

Total $268,948 

2018‐19 Budget  $250,000 

Difference $  18,948 

 

The 2018‐19 Capital Budget Project 18‐09‐Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehabilitation with 

the additional $18,948.00 allocated from reserves.  

 

135



PROPOSAL 

District Board 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
P. 0. Box 221428 
3945 Rio Road 
Carmel, CA 93922 

Ladies/Gentlemen: 

Pursuant to the published Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals, the undersigned hereby proposes 
and binds themselves on award by the District Board of the Carmel Area Wastewater District, 
under the proposal to execute in accordance with such award, a contract, with necessary bonds, 
of which this Proposal, the Notice Inviting Sealed Proposals and the Specifications shall be a part, 
to furnish any and all required labor, material and services for performing, and completing the 
work set forth in the said Specifications within the time hereinafter set forth and at the prices 
named in this proposal as follows: 

Note: Give both unit price and extended total. Prices must be stated in units to quantity specified 
in the bid specifications. 
LS — Lump Sum; 	SqFt — Square Foot; 	LFt — Linear Foot; 	Each — Each item 

In case of discrepancy in computing the amount of the bid, the unit price quoted will govern and 
the total will be adjusted accordingly. No spaces are to be left blank, but should be marked as  
follows:  

N/A = Not Applicable 
N/C = No Charge 
N/B = No Bid 

Spaces marked with a zero (0) will be considered no charge. 

Section 1 — page 9 

136



A. BIDDER WILL COMPLETE THE WORK FOR THE FOLLOWING PRICES: 

Work Item Unit Quantity Unit 
Cost, 
dollars 

Cost, dollars 

1. Abrasive Blasting 1 LS N/A $ 	75,  oonoo 
2. Coating 1 LS N/A $ 	5a, i q o . OO 
Total Bid Amount 
(Sum of all Work Items 1— 2) 	IPri) I CO . 00  
Amount in Numbers 

$ 	
17j  On DO 

Amount in Words Ohe. huRatr,ed +we'i#y 5evr, —FilotcSa-nct-.che,  

hundred. htsnelV riolleivvs a kg no cen 

The undersigned has examined the locations of the proposed work and is familiar with the Plans 
and Specifications and the local conditions at the place where the work is to be done. 

The undersigned has checked carefully all the above figures and understands that the District 
will not be responsible for any errors or omissions on the part of the undersigned in making up 
this Proposal. The undersigned understands that the District reserves the right to reject any or all 
bids and to waive any irregularities or informalities in bids received. Award will be made which, 
in the judgment of the District Board, is to the best interest of the District. 

It is agreed that this proposal may not be withdrawn within a period of sixty (60) days after the 
date set for the opening thereof. 

In accordance with the Specifications, the undersigned further agrees to so plan the work and to 
prosecute it with such diligence that said work shall be commenced within fifteen (15) calendar 
days after the issuance of a notice from the District to proceed with the work, and the entire 
project completed in Ninety (90) calendar days from date of Notice to Proceed. 

The undersigned agrees, if awarded the Contract, that there shall be paid by the undersigned and 
all subcontractors under him, to all laborers, workmen and mechanics employed in the execution 
of such contract or any subcontract thereunder, not less than the general prevailing rate of per 
diem wages, and rates for overtime and legal holidays in the locality in which the work is to be 
performed, as established by the State Director of the Department of Industrial Relations. 

Contractor's License:  .7971422 33)  	Expiration date:  in 30-20R0 
Class A.-1-0733 

Section 1— page 10 

137



By Dated: 	.5 - I 

  

Authorized Signature 

Name & Title -qane.lolidr, Mr6pck. 	Telephone ( 516)  7 70- 12.•  
ITY /717-eet-Cie ver- 

Business Name  E R,g Tmehts4-1 	ic•e  ..2:0G • 

Business Mailing Address 

'aIaQ War Yr) 8)  pii:Y135  

Freyylph+; 	3 9 

Section 1— page 11 

138



BIDDERS STATEMENT OF EXPERIENCE QUALIFICATIONS 

The Bidder has been engaged in the contracting business, under the present business name for 
23  years. Experience in work of similar nature to that covered in this Proposal extends over 

a period of  ,,2 3  . 

The Bidder, as a contractor, has never failed to satisfactorily complete a contract awarded to 
him/her, except as follows: 

The following similar coating contracts have been satisfactorily completed in the last two years 
for the persons/firms/agency indicated and to whom reference is made: 

YEAR TYPE OF WORK CONTRACT AMOUNT 
`geholo. toiA &air 

461 cI 3R_-_t 	 21.16 054, 50  
ig coolioAs triprnemt 	 06)  

" 7, to 

SIGNED 

OWNER NAME/PHONE NUMBER  t419cutte.s 1.06,4-er ryt-parvt./ 
N.vi s 767- 	--A353  

Si !icor) \Attie>,  elea-t, Waer-(5t/CW) 54,Q-a51-73$S Delmf Tetikitrvt-ps  

Deserit  (dater /139y)cii  
`Ryan YYloihoe14, 	 Exf, 

DATE  5-7 9 

,9olg 	6DeLlerls 

TYPED NAME/TITLE  -RetYlAa 	(96(161it1l  Seer 
(Same as signature on Proposal) 

This document shall be executed and submitted with the Proposal. Failure to comply may 
result in the rejection of the Proposal. 

Section 1- page 12 

139



FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES CERTIFICATE 

TO: Carmel Area Wastewater District 

The undersigned, in submitting a bid for: 

Secondary Clarifier #1 Coating Project 

Hereby certifies that he/she will meet the standards of affirmative compliance with the Fair 
Employment Practices requirements of the Special Provisions contained herein. 

Signature of Bidder 	  
- --- 

Printed Name and Title of Bidder  .. s111A.0\1 	-R(1.AtrYI,(:(1)  Seete‘y/rreaSt/rek- 

Business Address  c2 PC) ti06-117) S 136 nns (j.  

revyvntt--) 	g'  5 3 9  

This certification shall be executed and submitted with the Proposal. Failure to comply may 
result in the rejection of the Proposal. 

Section 1- page 13 

140



SECURITY FOR COMPENSATION CERTIFICATE 

TO: Carmel Area Wastewater District 

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code of the State of California which 
require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake 
self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Code and I will comply with such 
provisions before commencing the performance of the work under this Contract. 

Signature of Bidder 

11 
Printed Name and Title of Bidder  fi'anct4:11,1 Racio-ruA  Bee  "7/71--eas-21 rer 

c2.1X) WoJern S priols  

Pevylen,\+, OA. Q1539  

This document shall be executed and submitted with the Proposal. Failure to comply may 
result in the rejection of the Proposal. 

Business Address 

Section 1— page 14 

141



BIDDER'S DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

Each Bidder shall set forth below: 
A) The name and the location of the place of business of each of the subcontractors who will 

perform any work, supply labor, fabricate parts, or render any service to the Contractor 
in or about the construction of the work described in the Plans and Specifications in an 
amount in excess of one-half of one percent (1/2%) of the Contractor's total bid amount 
and; 

B) The portion of work which will be performed by each subcontractor. 
If the Contractor fails to specify a subcontractor for any item of work that a subcontractor 
designation is required, he agrees to perform that part of the work him/herself. In accordance 
with Section 4101 et sequa of the Government Code of the State of California, as amended, the 
following is the list of subcontractors who will be performing in excess of 1/2% of the total bid 
amount: 

$ VALUE & 
SUBCONTRACTOR NAME SHOP, MILL OR OFFICE WORK CLASS % OF WORK  

--11One. 

SIGNED DATE 	5 --7-19 

 

        

PRINTED NAME/TITLE  51 	( rtkcc ti(),A MU:eh — See resiziy/ ireasw  tet- 

Make copies and use if more space is needed. 

This document shall be executed and submitted with the Proposal. Failure to comply may 
result in the rejection of the Proposal. 

Section 1— page 15 

142



BIDDER'S DESIGNATION OF EQUIPMENT, MATERIAL 
MANUFACTURERS AND PROPOSED SUBSTITUTIONS 

Unless a substitution is approved by the District, the Contractor proposes to supply the 
equipment as supplied by the following designated supplier(s) for major pieces of equipment. 

SPECIFICATION 
	

EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION 
	

MANUFACTURER 
SECTION 

           

  

99100 

  

Coating material 

  

ScuLer ei soh,  

  

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

This document shall be executed and submitted with the Proposal. Failure to comply may 
result in the rejection of the Proposal. 

Section 1— page 16 

143



SIGNED DATE 5-7-0 
7 &e1512 Vet- PRINTED NAME/TITLE 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 

The undersigned representative of the bidder submitting the proposal attached herewith hereby 
declares that said Proposal is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, 
partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not 
collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other 
bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, 
connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that any one shall 
refrain from communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any 
other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other 
bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone 
interested in the proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, 
that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown 
thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will 
not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid 
depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid. 

This document shall be executed and submitted with the Proposal. Failure to comply may 
result in the rejection of the Proposal. 

Section 1— page 17 

144



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐20 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO ERS INDUSTRIAL SERVICES, 

INC FOR COATINGS FOR THE 2018‐19 SECONDARY CLARIFIER #1 

REHABILITATION PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $127,190, 

AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO SAID CONTRACT, 

AUTHORIZE A BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR AN ADDITIONAL $18,948 FROM 

CAPITAL RESERVES TO COMPLETE SAID PROJECT, AND AUTHORIZE A 

REVISION TO RESOLUTION 2018‐28 TO REFLECT CHANGED CONDITIONS 

 

‐oOo‐ 

 
WHEREAS, the 2018‐19 Budget allocated $250,000 for the Secondary Clarifier #1 

rehabilitation project to include replacement of center drive mechanism and bridge, 

coating work, and electrical work; and  

WHEREAS, the coatings bid was publicly advertised and sent to multiple 

vendors but only one bid was received.  Staff has reviewed and is confident the bid is 

reasonable for the specified work and requests that the Board award the contract to the 

sole bidder, ERS Industrial Services, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $127,190; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager to enter into 

said contract on their behalf; and 

WHEREAS, staff is requesting the allocation of an additional $18,948 from 

Capital Reserves to complete said project because it has exceeded the original budget 

amount of $250,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is authorizing these changes to Resolution #2018‐28 

approved July 26, 2018 to reflect the change in conditions.  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District, that  

 The Board accepts and awards the bid to ERS Industrial Services Inc. in the amount of 

145



$127,190 for blasting and coating services at Secondary Clarifier #1.   

 The Board authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract with ERS Industrial 

Services, Inc. for said services. 

 The Board authorizes a Budget Amendment in the amount of $18,948 from Capital 

Reserves to complete the Secondary Clarifier #1 Rehabilitation Project. 

 The Board authorizes a revision to Resolution #2018‐28 approved July 26, 2018 to reflect 

the changed conditions as discussed here. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on May 30, 2019 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

 

              _____________________________ 

              President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

 

146



 
STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    May 30, 2019 

 

Subject:  Pebble Beach Community Services District – Regular Board Meeting April 

26, 2019 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Agenda items from the April 26, 2019 meeting that are of specific interest to this 

District: 

 

 Total cash balance at the end of March 2019 was $18.5M; of that amount, $13.1M 

was designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves.  Property taxes 

comprise roughly 85% of District revenues with user fees making up 12%. 

 

 The Board approved the 2019‐20 Preliminary Budget and set the final budget 

hearing, including user fees for June 28, 2019.  Sewer user fees are proposed to be 

increased by 9.0%.  The increase amounts to $1.86/mo., from $20.62 to $22.48 for 

residential units.  The budget includes $6.1M for wastewater expenditures, 

excluding the carry‐over from the prior year.  The $5.0M difference between the 

budgeted expenditures and user fee revenue is proposed to be financed from 

property tax ($4.0M), capital outlay reserve ($750K), and investment and other 

revenue ($235K). 

 

 Forest Lake Reservoir held 112 MG (million gallons) of recycled water or 97% of 

permitted capacity.  Current storage volume is 3% above the historic average of 

109 MG. 

 

 Total irrigation water demand for the 2019 calendar year through March was 12 

AF (acre feet).  Total demand for the calendar year is 85% below the 5‐year 

average of 80 AF and 79% below the 24‐year average annual usage of 58 AF.  The 

month of March reflected a net storage decrease of approximately 2 MG at Forest 

147



Lake Reservoir. 

 Average daily wastewater flow of 763,000 GPD was measured in March at the 

PBCSD‐Carmel gate.  This represents 41% of the total flow at the CAWD 

treatment facility.  The measured PBCSD flow was 47% below the five‐year 

average of 518,000 GPD for the month of March; the CAWD total flow was 23% 

above the five‐year average of 1,515,000 GPD for March.   

 

 The three alternative source water projects were out‐of‐service from January 2019 

to mid‐April 2019 due to ongoing storm events as well as the filling of Forest 

Lake Reservoir.  Startup of the 4th Fairway Diversion Facility was initiated on 

April 15th.     

 

 Status of Reclamation Storage Facilities Improvement Project:  Monterey 

Peninsula Engineering is nearing completion of al mechanical work within the 

pump pit area, including the installation of the three new/rebuilt pumps.  Testing 

of the newly installed pumps, piping and appurtenances is anticipated to be 

completed before the end of April; allowing maintenance staff to restore normal 

operations. 

 

 Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) 

show: 

 

MONTH  TOTAL  CAWD FLOW  PBCSD FLOW  PBCSD 

July ‐ 18  36.645  25.589  11.056  30.171% 

Aug – 18  36.346  25.482  10.864  29.890% 

Sept ‐ 18  33.219  23.073  10.146  30.543% 

Oct ‐ 18  32.829  22.915  9.914  30.199% 

Nov‐18  33.762  23.837  9.925  29.397% 

Dec‐18  35.452  24.846  10.606  29.917% 

Jan ‐ 19  39.778  27.204  12.574  31.610% 

Feb ‐ 19  65.276  40.133  25.143  38.518% 

Mar ‐ 19  57.969  34.308  23.661  40.817% 

Total  371.276  247.387  123.889  33.368% 

 

148



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    B. Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    May 30, 2019 

 

Subject:  Summary of Monterey County Treasurer Report dated 03‐31‐19 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

No action required – this is informational only 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

During the January – March quarter, interest rates fluctuated between small gains and 

small declines throughout most of the period, ultimately ending the quarter with yields 

down across the curve following a steady decline after the Federal Reserve’s March 

meeting.  Yields fell despite a recovery in the equity markets.  Longer maturity yields 

fell more than shorter maturities and in mid‐March, the 3‐month to 10‐year part of the 

yield curve inverted for a brief period, renewing concerns about a possible recession in 

the near future.  The Federal Reserve held short‐term rates unchanged at the current 

target range of 2.25% to 2.50% at their January and March meetings.  They also shifted 

to a “patient” stance on future rate actions and have implied there will be no additional 

Federal Reserve rate hikes in 2019.  U.S. equities recovered from the sell‐off last quarter 

and had their best quarter in at least a decade during the third quarter.   

 

PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS 

  09‐30‐18  12‐31‐18  03‐31‐19 

Total Assets  $1,331,217,570.21  $1,528,686,820.37  $1,683,748,933.92 

Market Value  $1,323,210,566.84  $1,518,307,204.45  $1,672,221,350.10 

Days to Maturity  222  272  335 

Yield  1.84%  2.08%  2.32% 

Estimated Earnings  $6,517,874.72  $7,409,471.25  $9,095,864.80 

 

The Monterey County Treasurer’s portfolio consists of fixed income investments, all of 

149



which are authorized by the State of California Government Code 53601. 

 

PORTFOLIO ASSET COMPOSITION 03-31-19 
Corporate Notes  14.5% 

Overnight Liquid Assets  23.3% 

US Treasuries  41.0% 

Federal Agencies  9.3% 

Commercial Paper  3.8% 

Negotiable CDs  4.6% 

Supranationals  2.8% 

Municipal Bonds  0.1% 

Asset Backed Securities  0.6% 

 

The County Treasury continues to perform comparatively to portfolio benchmarks this 

quarter.    The County investment strategy continues to focus on capturing relative 

value while remaining cautious.    

 

Future Strategy:  The Treasurer has 58% of the portfolio invested in maturities under 

one year and 42% invested in the 1‐3 year maturity range.  In the current interest rate 

environment characterized by a flat yield curve and stable rates, portfolio purchase will 

be laddered across maturities and sectors chosen based on relative value.  This strategy 

will lock in longer‐term yields while also ensuring liquidity needs are met.  We will 

continue to manage the portfolio under the established tenets of safety and liquidity 

while seeking to maximize the rate of return.  

 

The investment portfolio was in compliance with all applicable provisions of state law 

and the adopted Investment Policy and contained sufficient liquidity to meet all 

projected outflows over the next six months. 

 

 

 

Note:  The full Monterey County Treasurer Report is available at: 

www.co.monterey.ca.us/taxcollector/Treasury_Main.html 

150



151



152



153



154



155


	01. Board Packet Cover
	04. Regular Board Meeting Minutes-04-25-19
	05. H&W Bank Statment-April 2019
	06. CAWD Cash Receipts & Disbursements - April 2019
	07. CAWD Disbursements - April 2019
	08. Reclamation Disbursements - April 2019
	09. Financial Stmt -April FS
	10.A Collection April Board Report
	10.B Collection April 19 Map v2
	11. Safety & Regulatory Report - Staff Report April 2019
	12. Treatment Facility Ops Report-2019 Feb through April
	13. Lab & Environmental Compliance-Staff Report April 2019
	14. Capital Projects & Implementation Plan Schedule 5-16-19
	15. Operations Staff Report- April 2019
	16. Maintenance Report-Staff Report April 2019
	17. Principal Engineer Staff Report-April 2019
	18.A Award of Lift Station PLC Equipment Procurement-Staff Report 5-30-19
	18.B RES 2019-16 Sewage Lift Station Control Panel
	19.A Reclamation Budget 19-20
	19.B Reclamation 2019-20 Budget
	19.C RES 2019-17 Adopting  CAWD-PBCSD Reclamation Project Budget 2019-20
	20.A 5-30-19 - Auth to Execute Contract with Greeley Hanson for Plant Process Model
	20.B Attachment 1 - Carmel Consulting Engineering Services - 22-Apr-2019-signed
	20.C Attachemnt 2 - BioWinGeneral Brochure
	20.D RES 2019-18 Auth GM to Execute Contract with Greeley & Hanson-WWTP Computer Model-$49,720
	21.A Bid Staff Report- Monte Verde and 2nd
	21.B RES 2019-19 Authorizing Inviting Bids for 2019-2020 Sewer Line Replacement
	22.A ERS Secondary Clarifier Coating- $127K add'l $18.9Staff Report May 2019 - Final
	22.B ERS Proposal, Sealed Bid_1
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9

	22.C RES 2019-20  Blasting and Coating Clarifier 1-Org $127K add'l $18.9K
	24. PBCSD  Regular board Mtng 04-26-19
	25. Monterey County Investment Report 03-31-19
	26.A Ambulance Lttr 1
	26.B Ambulance Lttr 2



